
 
Sequoia Grove Charter Alliance  

Special Board Meeting 

Date and Time:​ September 18, 2025 

6:30 pm 

 

Location:​ Join Zoom Meeting 

https://sequoiagrove-org.zoom.us/j/81425258665  

 

Meeting ID: 814 2525 8665 

 

Agenda: 

I.​ Opening items 

A.​ Record Attendance 

B.​ Call the Meeting to Order 

C.​ Approval of the Agenda 

D.​ Public Comments on agenda and non-agenda items 

E.​ Approval of Minutes 

a.​ Board Meeting - 6-18-25 

II.​ Governance:  

A.​ Discussion on Board Meeting Protocols and Norms 

B.​ Update on Filling Board Member Vacancies  

C.​ Discussion and Potential Action on the Bylaws  

III.​ Director’s Update 

A.​ Director’s Report – Desiree Miller  

IV.​ Finances 

A.​ Budget Update - Creative Back Office  

V.​ Closing Items Operations 

A.​ Board of Director’s Comments & Requests For Future Agenda Items 

B.​ Announcement of Next Regular Scheduled Board Meeting  

 

C.​ Adjourn Meeting 

 

Public Comment Rules: Members of the public may address the Board on agenda or 

non-agenda items through the teleconference platform, Zoom. Zoom does not require 

the members of the public to have an account or login. Please either utilize the chat 

option to communicate to the administrative team of your desire to address the Board or 

https://sequoiagrove-org.zoom.us/j/81425258665


simply communicate orally your desire to address the Board when the Board asks for 

public comments. Speakers may be called in the order requests are received. Comments 

are limited to 2 minutes each, with no more than 16 minutes per single topic. If a 

member of the public utilizes a translator to address the Board, those individuals are 

allotted 4 minutes each. If the Board utilizes simultaneous translation equipment in a 

manner that allows the Board to hear the translated public testimony simultaneously, 

those individuals are allotted 2 minutes each. By law, the Board is allowed to take action 

only on items on the agenda. The Board may, at its discretion, refer a matter to school 

staff or calendar the issue for future discussion. 

 

Note: The Governing Board encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in 

the public meeting process. If you need a disability-related modification or 

accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to participate in the public 

meeting, please contact the Sequoia Grove Office at (916) 526-3794 at least 48 hours 

before the scheduled board meeting so every reasonable effort can be made to 

accommodate you. (Government Code § 54954.2; Americans with Disabilities Act of 

1990, § 202 (42 U.S.C. § 1213).  



 
SGCA Special Board Meeting Minutes 

June 18, 2025 
 

I.​ Opening Items: 
A.​ Record Attendance 

The following Board Members were present at Rollcall: 

o​ Janeal Cimino  
o​ Rose Faramarzi-Rad 
o​ Robert McGuire 
o​ Gloria Maxwell 
o​ Glad Donahue  

 
B.​ Janeal Cimino called the meeting to order at 6:34 PM. 
C.​ Approval of the Agenda 

Glad Donahue made a motion to approve the Agenda.  
Gloria Maxwell seconded the motion.  
Rollcall vote was taken. The motion passed unanimously.  

 
D.​ Public Comments:  

Janeal Cimino read a statement about public comments and the chat function was 
disabled after the public comment period.  

Who spoke Subject Matter 

No Public Comments   

 

E.​ Approval of Board Meeting Minutes: 

i.​ Regular Board Meeting May 15, 2025 
Glad Donahue motioned to approve the May 15, 2025 minutes.  
Rose Faramarzi-Rad seconded the motion.  
Rollcall vote was taken. The motion passed unanimously.  
 

II.​ Directors Update - Desiree Miller  

Desiree Miller gave a short update to the board about the following:  



 
SGCA Special Board Meeting Minutes 

June 18, 2025 
 

●​ The 2025 graduation and the support that the CSO gave for graduation. 

●​ The new library driver started on June 16th and the CSO is working to hire an 
additional driver to support their growing needs.  

●​ Desiree Miller presented at the June Board Meetings for each of the schools and 
that it was a positive experience.  

●​ In partnership with the schools, SGCA will issue a one-time stipend for each of 
the staff members.  

●​ The CSO is working on introducing student ID cards through ID123.  

●​ The CSO purchased a third library van.  

 

Janeal Cimino asked about the Digital ID Cards. She shared that she would be willing to offer 
her family as ‘guinea pigs’ to try them out over the summer.  

Glad Donahue asked about the $16,000 still in the budget for ID cards and asked Desiree if 
that was still needed. Desiree shared that yes that was still needed to cover costs of software 
and supplies for those requesting physical cards 

 
III.​ Finances:  

A.​ Budget Update - Creative Back Office 

Matt Butler shared a budget update with the Board.  No questions were asked.  
B.​ Discussion and Potential Action on a 3% One-Time COLA Stipend for all SGCA Staff 

Matt Butler gave a brief overview explaining that the schools were offering this as a 
result of strong fiscal budgeting and said that the CSO could follow suit.   

Glad Donahue motioned to approve the 3% one-time COLA stipended for all SGCA 
Staff.                                                                                                                                         
Rose Faramarzi-Rad seconded the motion.  
Rollcall vote was taken. The motion passed unanimously.  

C.​ Discussion and Potential Action on the 2025-2026 Budget 

Matt Butler presented the 2025-2026 Budget for the Board to Review.  Glad 



 
SGCA Special Board Meeting Minutes 

June 18, 2025 
 

Donahue asked about the postage line item - $83,000 for FY 25-26 up from 
$30,000 from current year.  Matt explained that the schools and CSO agreed that 
instead of billing back postage to each school on each item, it would make more 
sense to do a split billing of the total annual cost for postage.  

 

Glad Donahue motioned to approve the 2025-2026 Budget                                                                       
Rose Faramarzi-Rad seconded the motion.  
Rollcall vote was taken. The motion passed unanimously.  
 

D.​ Discussion and Potential Action on the Creative Back Office Contract 

Matt Butler presented the proposed contract for the 2025-26 school year which 
included a provision for two years (2026-27) which would keep the cost the same 
for two years.  He shared that this year they added full payroll processing, 403b 
processing, in addition to all of the other functions.  When he opened it for 
discussion, Glad asked about what would happen if we needed to end the contract 
early and Matt explained that there were different scenarios available in the event 
that it needed to be terminated.  Janeal suggested that the board should meet with 
Julie Haycock & Desiree Miller in closed session to discuss their perceptions of 
Creative Back Office before they approve the new contract.  Julie Haycock informed 
the board that a closed session would require an additional special board meeting 
to be held prior to June 30, 2025 in order to approve the contract in time for the 
new fiscal year.  Julie Haycock asked if she could offer her perspective at the time in 
the open board meeting and they said yes.  Julie shared that her experience with 
CBO has been extremely positive, professional, and transparent.  She shared that 
she has 100% confidence that moving forward with a two year contract would be in 
the best interest of the organization.  Robert McGuire shared the same sentiment 
and added that working with Matt Butler and Cory Cavanah has been a great 
experience and they are very professional and he too, supported approval of the 
contract.  Desiree Miller also shared that she too felt very comfortable moving 
forward with the contract.  

Rose Faramarzi-Rad motioned to approve the Creative Back Office Contract                                           
Glad Donahue seconded the motion.  



























































ID CARD UPDATE

01
02
03

With the introduction of ID 123, the ID card process is now noticeably faster and
more efficient.

Both digital and physical ID cards are being offered or both.

We’ve already processed over 1,000 requests successfully!



RESOURCE CENTER UPDATES

01 Delisha Rood has increased her hours from part-time to a full-time schedule of
30 hours per week.

02 Events are in full swing, with many exciting opportunities planned for
students and families this year!



IN PROGRESS
🌳 Park Day Safety Plan
 Emergency Safety Overview
🚨 Outlines clear steps to follow in the event of an emergency.
📞 Includes staff and emergency contact information.
✅ Ensures the library team is informed, safe, and prepared.



Thank you!



 

 

2024-25 SGCA Budget Overview – September 18, 2025  

Budget Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2025  

● 2024-25 Budgeted Revenue - $2,117,255 
● 2024-25 Budgeted Expenditures- $2,117,255 
● 2024-25 Adopted Budget Projected Year End Balance $0.00 

 
Actual Financials 2024/2025 & 3 % Revenue Reserve   

• Total Revenue - $2,117,254 
• Total Expenses - $2,040,846 
• Net Operating Income/ Year End Balance - $76,408 
• 3% of Budgeted Revenue ($2,117,254) Reserve - $63,517 
• Net Operating Income Minus 3% Reserve - $76,408 - $63,517= $12,890 
• Total Owed Back to Schools $12,890 

    
3% Owed Back To Schools Breakdown  

• Shared Service Agreement - Clarksville 39% $825,729.32 - $5,027 
• Shared Service Agreement - Feather River 45% $952,764.60 - $5,800 
• Shared Service Agreement - Lakeview 16% $338,760.75   - $2,062 

 
Cumulative Ending Balance  

● Beginning Balance 7/1/2024 - $209,538 *Retained Earnings after Year 1-3 
● 2024-25 Balance (Net Operating Income) - $63,517 
● Cumulative Balance 06/30/2025 - $273,056 

 

Adopted Budget July 2025  

● 2025-26 Adopted Budgeted Revenue - $2,618,202 
● 2025-26 Adopted Budgeted Expenditures- $2,618,202 
● 2025-26 Adopted Budget Projected Year End Balance $0.00 
● Net Change of $500,948  

 



Total
Income
   Shared Services Agreement 2,117,255.00  

Total Income $                                                                                                                                             2,117,255.00  
Gross Profit $                                                                                                                                             2,117,255.00  
Expenses
   2900 Salaries 777,072.00  

   3300 Medicare/ Social Security 58,185.00  

   3400 Health and Welfare Benefits 91,627.00  

   3500 Unemployment Insurance 7,181.00  

   3600 Workers Compensation 8,594.00  

   3900 403B 50,703.00  

   4315 Office Expense 60,000.00  

   4500 Furniture 3,000.00  

   5200 Professional Development & Travel
      5211 Professional Development 500.00  

   Total 5200 Professional Development & Travel $                                                                                                                                                       500.00  
   5301 Insurance & Registration 10,000.00  

   5302 Fuel 15,000.00  

   5303 Maintenance / Oil Changes 10,000.00  

   5400 General Liability Insurance 38,857.00  

   5501 Facility Security 22,000.00  

   5610 Facility Lease 281,119.00  

   5615 Repairs & Maintenance 10,000.00  

   5616 Security Deposit Zin 27,977.00  

   5620 Equipment Lease 30,000.00  

   5803 Audit & Tax Return 10,740.00  

   5805 General Consulting 20,000.00  

   5812 Business Services 80,000.00  

   5840 Banking & Payroll Fees 10,000.00  

   5845 Legal Expenses 10,000.00  

   5851 Advertising/Marketing 1,000.00  

   5860 Fingerprinting/Personnel Fees 200.00  

   5869 Events & Supports 6,000.00  

   5870 New Arrival Package 1,500.00  

   5871 Founders Awards 1,000.00  

   5872 Community E. & D. - Staff Events & Team Building 2,000.00  

   5874 Community E. & D. - Staff Gear 1,200.00  

   5875 Community E. & D. - Staff Appreciation 2,000.00  

   5878 403B  Fees 4,000.00  

   5887 Tech Services 352,800.00  

   5889 Moving Cost 20,000.00  

   5890 Board Stipend 12,000.00  

   5910 Phone & Internet - Comcast Verizon 36,000.00  

   5911 Phone & Video Calling -Zoom 10,000.00  

   5920 Postage 35,000.00  

Total Expenses $                                                                                                                                             2,117,255.00  
Net Operating Income $                                                                                                                                                           0.00  
Net Income $                                                                                                                                                           0.00  

Sequoia Grove Charter Alliance
Budget Overview: FY 2024-25 Mid Year Revision Budget - FY25 P&L 

July 2024 - June 2025



Total
Income
   Shared Services Agreement 2,117,254.67  63,517.64                                      3% of Revenue 
Total Income $                                                     2,117,254.67  
Gross Profit $                                                     2,117,254.67  
Expenses
   2900 Salaries 743,760.14  

      2901 Salaries - Overtime 1,256.12  

      2902 Salaries - Medical Opt Out 12,600.00  

   Total 2900 Salaries $                                                        757,616.26  
   3300 Medicare/ Social Security 56,478.79  

   3390 Federal Income Tax Withheld 0.00  

   3400 Health and Welfare Benefits 73,921.70  

   3500 Unemployment Insurance 11,362.70  

   3590 CA State Income Tax Withheld 0.00  

   3600 Workers Compensation 19,361.00  

   3900 403B 18,304.95  

   4301 Office Expenses Total
      4315 Office Expense 54,995.52  

   Total 4301 Office Expenses Total $                                                          54,995.52  
   4500 Furniture 5,213.00  

   5200 Professional Development & Travel 494.28  

      5210 Conferences 1,141.17  

      5214 Travel 1,488.12  

   Total 5200 Professional Development & Travel $                                                            3,123.57  
   5301 Insurance & Registration 18,347.01  

   5302 Fuel 9,407.74  

   5303 Maintenance / Oil Changes 11,718.86  

   5400 General Liability Insurance 38,856.26  

   5501 Facility Security 19,993.53  

   5610 Facility Lease 281,910.89  

   5615 Repairs & Maintenance 3,773.80  

   5620 Equipment Lease 24,935.16  

   5803 Audit & Tax Return 10,740.00  

   5805 General Consulting 8,146.25  

   5812 Business Services 80,000.00  

   5840 Banking & Payroll Fees 7,468.47  

   5845 Legal Expenses 9,693.98  

   5860 Fingerprinting/Personnel Fees 1,597.94  

   5869 Events & Supports 5,574.48  

   5870 New Arrival Package 721.59  

   5871 Founders Awards 1,000.00  

   5872 Community E. & D. - Staff Events & Team Building 860.65  

   5874 Community E. & D. - Staff Gear 1,705.45  

   5875 Community E. & D. - Staff Appreciation 3,986.59  

   5878 403B  Fees 4,480.00  

   5887 Tech Services 352,800.00  

   5889 Moving Cost 22,259.70  

   5890 Board Stipend 7,600.00  

   5899 Misc. Operating Services 8,140.98  

   5910 Phone & Internet - Comcast Verizon 29,947.37  

   5911 Phone & Video Calling -Zoom 3,479.92  

   5920 Postage 621.96  

      5921 UPS 35,320.23  

      5922 SendPro/Metered Mail/Postage 6,522.94  

      5923 Pitney Bowes Lease 1,402.73  

   Total 5920 Postage $                                                          43,867.86  
   6900 Depreciation 27,454.58  

Total Expenses $                                                     2,040,846.55  
Net Operating Income $                                                          76,408.12  12,890.48                                      Over 3% Reserve to Return 
Net Income $                                                          76,408.12  

Over 3% Reserve to Return 12,890$                                                        

Owed Back To Schools 24/25
Shared Service Agreement - Clarksville 39% 825,729.32$                              39% 5,027$                               

Shared Service Agreement - Feather River 45% 952,764.60$                              45% 5,801$                               
Shared Service Agreement - Lakeview 16% 338,760.75$                              16% 2,062$                               

12,890$                                           

Sequoia Grove Charter Alliance
Profit and Loss
July 2024 - June 2025



Sequoia Grove Charter Alliance
Budget vs. Actuals: FY 2024-25 Mid Year Revision Budget - FY25 P&L

July 2024 - June 2025

Accrual Basis  Saturday, September 13, 2025 12:55 PM GMT-07:00   1/2

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET % OF BUDGET

Income

Shared Services Agreement 2,117,254.67 2,117,255.00 -0.33 100.00 %

3% Refund -12,890.49 -12,890.49

Total Shared Services Agreement 2,104,364.18 2,117,255.00 -12,890.82 99.39 %

Total Income $2,104,364.18 $2,117,255.00 $ -12,890.82 99.39 %

GROSS PROFIT $2,104,364.18 $2,117,255.00 $ -12,890.82 99.39 %

Expenses

2900 Salaries 743,760.14 777,072.00 -33,311.86 95.71 %

2901 Salaries - Overtime 1,256.12 1,256.12

2902 Salaries - Medical Opt Out 12,600.00 12,600.00

Total 2900 Salaries 757,616.26 777,072.00 -19,455.74 97.50 %

3300 Medicare/ Social Security 56,478.79 58,185.00 -1,706.21 97.07 %

3390 Federal Income Tax Withheld 0.00 0.00

3400 Health and Welfare Benefits 73,921.70 91,627.00 -17,705.30 80.68 %

3500 Unemployment Insurance 11,362.70 7,181.00 4,181.70 158.23 %

3590 CA State Income Tax Withheld 0.00 0.00

3600 Workers Compensation 19,361.00 8,594.00 10,767.00 225.29 %

3900 403B 18,304.95 50,703.00 -32,398.05 36.10 %

4301 Office Expenses Total

4315 Office Expense 54,995.52 60,000.00 -5,004.48 91.66 %

Total 4301 Office Expenses Total 54,995.52 60,000.00 -5,004.48 91.66 %

4500 Furniture 5,213.00 3,000.00 2,213.00 173.77 %

5200 Professional Development & Travel 494.28 494.28

5210 Conferences 1,141.17 1,141.17

5211 Professional Development 500.00 -500.00

5214 Travel 1,488.12 1,488.12

Total 5200 Professional Development & Travel 3,123.57 500.00 2,623.57 624.71 %

5301 Insurance & Registration 18,347.01 10,000.00 8,347.01 183.47 %

5302 Fuel 9,407.74 15,000.00 -5,592.26 62.72 %

5303 Maintenance / Oil Changes 11,718.86 10,000.00 1,718.86 117.19 %

5400 General Liability Insurance 38,856.26 38,857.00 -0.74 100.00 %

5501 Facility Security 19,993.53 22,000.00 -2,006.47 90.88 %

5515 Custodial Service 0.00 0.00

5610 Facility Lease 281,910.89 281,119.00 791.89 100.28 %

5615 Repairs & Maintenance 3,773.80 10,000.00 -6,226.20 37.74 %

5616 Security Deposit Zin 27,977.00 -27,977.00

5620 Equipment Lease 24,935.16 30,000.00 -5,064.84 83.12 %

5803 Audit & Tax Return 10,740.00 10,740.00 0.00 100.00 %

5805 General Consulting 8,146.25 20,000.00 -11,853.75 40.73 %

5812 Business Services 80,000.00 80,000.00 0.00 100.00 %

5840 Banking & Payroll Fees 7,468.47 10,000.00 -2,531.53 74.68 %

5845 Legal Expenses 9,693.98 10,000.00 -306.02 96.94 %



Sequoia Grove Charter Alliance
Budget vs. Actuals: FY 2024-25 Mid Year Revision Budget - FY25 P&L

July 2024 - June 2025

Accrual Basis  Saturday, September 13, 2025 12:55 PM GMT-07:00   2/2

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET % OF BUDGET

5851 Advertising/Marketing 1,000.00 -1,000.00

5860 Fingerprinting/Personnel Fees 1,597.94 200.00 1,397.94 798.97 %

5869 Events & Supports 5,574.48 6,000.00 -425.52 92.91 %

5870 New Arrival Package 721.59 1,500.00 -778.41 48.11 %

5871 Founders Awards 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 100.00 %

5872 Community E. & D. - Staff Events & Team Building 860.65 2,000.00 -1,139.35 43.03 %

5874 Community E. & D. - Staff Gear 1,705.45 1,200.00 505.45 142.12 %

5875 Community E. & D. - Staff Appreciation 3,986.59 2,000.00 1,986.59 199.33 %

5878 403B  Fees 4,480.00 4,000.00 480.00 112.00 %

5887 Tech Services 352,800.00 352,800.00 0.00 100.00 %

5889 Moving Cost 22,259.70 20,000.00 2,259.70 111.30 %

5890 Board Stipend 7,600.00 12,000.00 -4,400.00 63.33 %

5899 Misc. Operating Services 8,140.98 8,140.98

5910 Phone & Internet - Comcast Verizon 29,947.37 36,000.00 -6,052.63 83.19 %

5911 Phone & Video Calling -Zoom 3,479.92 10,000.00 -6,520.08 34.80 %

5920 Postage 621.96 35,000.00 -34,378.04 1.78 %

5921 UPS 35,320.23 35,320.23

5922 SendPro/Metered Mail/Postage 6,522.94 6,522.94

5923 Pitney Bowes Lease 1,402.73 1,402.73

Total 5920 Postage 43,867.86 35,000.00 8,867.86 125.34 %

6900 Depreciation 27,454.58 27,454.58

Total Expenses $2,040,846.55 $2,117,255.00 $ -76,408.45 96.39 %

NET OPERATING INCOME $63,517.63 $0.00 $63,517.63 0.00%

NET INCOME $63,517.63 $0.00 $63,517.63 0.00%



Sequoia Grove Charter Alliance
Balance Sheet

As of June 30, 2025

Accrual Basis  Saturday, September 13, 2025 01:04 PM GMT-07:00   1/2

TOTAL

ASSETS

Current Assets

Bank Accounts

Checking (6779) 216,285.96

Total Bank Accounts $216,285.96

Accounts Receivable

Accounts Receivable (A/R) 4,485.00

Total Accounts Receivable $4,485.00

Other Current Assets

CTS Duplicate Check 0.00

Prepaid 17,813.79

Total Other Current Assets $17,813.79

Total Current Assets $238,584.75

Fixed Assets

9450 Transportation Vans 93,599.31

9451 Van Depreciation -25,532.84

Accumulated Depreciation - Start Up Equipment & Furniture -71,614.92

Fixed Assets - Start Up Equipment & Furniture 118,957.87

Total Fixed Assets $115,409.42

Other Assets

ROU Cal Center Lease #1 0.00

ROU Cal Center Lease #2 0.00

ROU Cal Center Lease #3 11,902.32

ROU Eureka Lease 29,373.83

Security Deposit 43,889.04

Total Other Assets $85,165.19

TOTAL ASSETS $439,159.36

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accounts Payable (A/P) 53,909.67

Total Accounts Payable $53,909.67

Credit Cards

Divvy (8578) 668.76






















	ADP4C5C.tmp
	AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS OF
	ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 18, 2025 DECEMBER 15, 2022
	ARTICLE I. NAME
	ARTICLE II. OFFICES
	ARTICLE III. PURPOSES
	ARTICLE IV. DEDICATION OF ASSETS
	ARTICLE V. MEMBERS
	ARTICLE VI. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	ARTICLE VII. OFFICERS
	ARTICLE VIII. COMMITTEES
	ARTICLE IX. INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE
	ARTICLE X. OTHER PROVISIONS
	ARTICLE XI. AMENDMENTS
	CERTIFICATE OF ADOPTION
	Attachment 1 Identification of Members
	Attachment 2




